UNITED
NATIONS CAT

Di str.
GENERAL

Convention against Torture
and Other Cruel, Inhuman

. CAT/ C/ SR. 334
or Degrading Treatment 19 ot ober 1998
or Punishment

ENGLI SH
Original: FRENCH

COW TTEE AGAI NST TORTURE
Twenti eth session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE PUBLI C PART* OF THE 334t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Thursday, 14 May 1998, at 10 a.m

Chai rman: M. BURNS

CONTENTS

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES UNDER ARTI CLE 19 OF THE
CONVENTI ON (conti nued)

Initial report of Kuwait

Second periodic report of New Zeal and (conti nued)

*  The summary record of the closed part of the neeting appears as
docunent CAT/ C/ SR. 334/ Add. 1.

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submtted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the O ficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des Nations, Ceneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public neetings of the Conmittee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session.

GE. 98- 16156 (E)



CAT/ C/ SR/ 334
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 10.05 a.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES UNDER ARTI CLE 19 OF THE
CONVENTI ON (agenda item 6) (continued)

Initial report of Kuwait (CAT/C/37/Add. 1)

1. At the invitation of the Chairman, M. al-Noori and M. al-Jassam
(Kuwai t) took places at the Conmttee table.

2. The CHAIRMAN invited the Kuwaiti delegation to introduce Kuwait's
initial report (CAT/C/ 37/Add.1).

3. M. AL-NOORI (Kuwait) stressed the inportance that Kuwait attached to
the subm ssion of its initial report in the context of the fiftieth

anni versary of the Universal Declaration of Human Ri ghts and the forthcom ng
cel ebration, on 26 June, of United Nations International Day in Support of
Victinms of Torture.

4, The Kuwaiti people resolutely condemmed all acts of torture and

associ ated practices. Action at the national |level - establishment or

strengt heni ng of denocracy and the rule of |aw - was undertaken in a context
of international cooperation and, in particular, of respect for all provisions
of the Convention. Kuwaiti |awrakers, concerned to give constitutional status
to the provisions prohibiting torture, had devoted two articles of the
Constitution to the subject. Before the promulgation of the Constitution, the
Penal Code and the Code of Crimnal Procedure had al ready contai ned provisions
crimnalizing torture and prohibiting the use of evidence obtained through
torture in the courts. Unfortunately, cases of torture had been recorded in
Kuwai t during the brutal occupation of the country in 1990-1991. The

United Nations Security Council had, in fact, adopted a nunmber of resol utions
on the subject. Concluding his general introduction, he reaffirmed Kuwait's
conmitment to the Charter of the United Nations and to its ains and noted that
Kuwai t had been one of the first countries in the region to accede to the
Conventi on.

5. I ntroducing the report, he said that the country was 17,000 kntf in area
and that the popul ati on nunbered sonme 2 mllion inhabitants, of whom 750, 000
were Kuwaiti nationals. There were many foreigners, 120 nationalities being
represented. O was the country's main resource and Kuwait boasted one of

t he hi ghest per capita incones in the world.

6. Kuwai t had opted for a political structure that was m dway between a
parliamentary and a presidential reginme. Legislative authority was vested in
the National Assenbly, which al so had supervisory authority over the
executive. The Assenbly consisted of 50 nenbers. The judiciary was entirely
i ndependent, as stipulated by the Constitution

7. The protection of human rights was guaranteed by a | arge nunber of |aws
and by chapters 2 and 3 of the Constitution. Mny |egislative enactnments had
been promul gated over the years with a view to strengthening the protection of
fundanmental human rights, and an article of the Constitution stipulated that
any anendnent thereto should serve that purpose. A Standing Comm ssion on



CAT/ C/ SR. 334
page 3

human rights affairs had been established as well as a Standing Committee in
the Mnistry of the Interior, which was authorized to receive conplaints from
citizens concerning violations of their rights.

8. Wth regard to the application of international treaties in Kuwait,
article 70 of the Constitution stipulated that treaties were automatically

i ncorporated in national |egislation and had force of law. Wth regard to

i nformati on and publication, it should be noted that, pursuant to the
Constitution, all legislation nust be published in the Oficial Gazette and in
ot her journals where appropriate. Sentences handed down by the Kuwaiti courts
agai nst State officials convicted of acts of torture were annexed to the
report.

9. During the period of occupation already referred to (1990-1991), acts of
torture had been commtted by Iraqgi soldiers. |In the internediate period that
foll owed the occupation, i.e. before the return of the legitimte authorities

from Saudi Arabia, Kuwaitis had regrettably also been guilty of human rights
violations. On its return, the Governnment had given priority to the task of
endi ng such violations and ensuring that the perpetrators were brought to
justice.

10. Wth regard to the inplenmentation of article 3, he quoted a passage from
the report of a humanitarian organi zation concerning refoul enent and
extradition procedures conducted in full conpliance with the provisions of the
Conventi on.

11. Articles 120, 121 and 125 of the Penal Code were fully consistent with
the provisions of article 4 of the Convention.

12. Wth regard to extradition, the provisions of the Convention were
conparable to simlar provisions of the International Convention against the
Taki ng of Hostages and other anti-terrorist instrunents. |In its bilatera

rel ati ons, Kuwait sought to conclude equitable extradition agreenents that
were conpatible with respect for human dignity. It endeavoured to establish
sound judicial cooperation by signing bilateral and international treaties
and, in cases where no agreenent existed, it based extradition on reciprocity,
the aimbeing to prevent crimnals fromevading justice.

13. The training of officials provided for in article 10 of the Convention
was conducted in a nunber of different ways. Law students at Kuwait

Uni versity studied the Penal Code and the Code of Criminal Procedure, both of
whi ch cont ai ned provisions prohibiting the use of torture. Police Acadeny
students and future judges attending the Institute for Judicial Studies were
al so made aware of the issues involved. He understood that the Committee had
devel oped precise guidelines in that regard which his country was very eager
to |l earn about and put into practice.

14. Article 11 of the Convention stipulated that each State party shoul d
keep interrogation rules and practices under systematic review The Kuwait
Code of Criminal Procedure was quite explicit in that regard, stipulating, in
particul ar, that a suspect was entitled to refrain from making a statenent in
t he absence of his |lawer. Wth regard to the application of articles 12

and 13, all investigations of acts of torture were conducted with the greatest



CAT/ C/ SR/ 334
page 4

di spatch, chiefly to ensure that the time spent in custody was as short as
possible. The rights protected in article 14 were guaranteed by the C vi
Code, and a torture victimcould claimreparations and conpensation for any
damage i ncurred.

15. Conf essions or statenents obtained under torture could not be deemed

adm ssible by Kuwaiti courts under any circunstances: in such cases, they
were declared null and void. Article 16 of the Convention was also fully
applied in Kuwait. In conclusion, he stressed his country's commtnment to the
strengt heni ng of human rights, a goal that nust be pursued relentlessly at
both the national and international |level. He eagerly awaited the Conmittee's
advi ce and gui dance and wel coned the di al ogue that had thus been initiated.

16. The CHAI RMAN (Country Rapporteur) thanked the Kuwaiti del egation for its
i nteresting introduction, which had already shed |light on a nunber of points.
As rapporteur, he noted that the initial report had been received only six
mont hs after the due date, which was exceptional and deserved to be stressed.
On the whole, the report was in conformty with the Comrittee's genera
gui del i nes concerning the formand content of reports.

17. The first question concerned the judicial system who appointed judges,
what criteria were applied and, above all, who could renove them from office
and under what circunstances?

18. Par agraph 30 of the report referred to “an innocent person who [had] not
yet been convicted”, it being understood that, if a person was found guilty,

t he puni shnent inposed on himcould not be regarded as torture or degrading
treatnment. But the Conmittee was concerned not only with persons who had not
been convicted but equally with those who had, because the provisions of the
Convention applied to themtoo and, in their case, it was the form of

puni shment that was inportant. Perhaps paragraph 30 referred to article 1 of
t he Convention, which stated that the termtorture did not apply to suffering
arising fromlawful sanctions. However, article 16, which dealt with cruel

i nhuman or degrading treatnment or puni shnent, contained no such reservation
and it was quite possible that a punishnent duly prescribed by |aw was
incompatible with article 16. Moreover, the “sanctions” nentioned in

article 1 nmust not only be |lawful under domestic |aw but also in terns of
basic internationally recognized norns. The type of punishnent inposed was in
that respect a vital element. The legitinmacy of capital punishment as such
was still a matter of debate anobng specialists in international |law, but it
was an indisputable fact that the use of particularly cruel methods of
execution by States was a clear breach of international |aw and such
executions could not be viewed as |awful, even under the ternms of article 1 of
the Convention. He therefore wished to know what ki nds of punishnment were

i nposed in Kuwait; he knew that capital punishnment existed, but what nethods
were used for the purpose? Wis there corporal punishnment and, if so, what
formdid it take?

19. He woul d appreciate additional information on the two cases of torture
menti oned i n paragraph 41 of the report, nore specifically on the behavi our of
the police officers in question. Wth regard to the renedi es available to

i ndividuals, it would be interesting to know whether civil and adm nistrative
remedi es al so existed in the case of crimnal proceedings.



CAT/ C/ SR. 334
page 5

20. Wth regard to article 1 of the Convention, he asked how the provisions
of the Convention were incorporated in donestic law, in particular whether the
definition of torture given in the Convention was included in crimnal |aw,
because, in the Commttee's view, that was the best way for State parties to

i mpl enment article 1. In the absence of such a reference to the definition
given in the Convention, it was virtually inpossible for themto compile
accurate information on the incidence of torture and report it to the
Conmittee. The definition also made it possible to establish a qualitative

di stinction between torture and offences that were | ess serious in noral

terms, such as assault, and to treat themdifferently. Could due obedience to
a higher authority be invoked as a defence under Kuwaiti donestic |law? O was
a defence of necessity applicable in such cases and, if so, could it be
applied to acts of torture?

21. The representative of Kuwait had provided useful information on
violations comritted in Kuwait during the transitional period, specifying in
particular that the Kuwaiti authorities, after resumng control over the
territory, had brought persons who had conmitted acts of torture to justice.
In how many cases had | egal action been taken and what had been the outconme?

22. Wth regard to asylum it would be useful to have a brief description
of the procedures foll owed when a person applied at the border for

adm ssion as a political refugee. Myreover, he gathered that there were
sonme 117,000 Bedouins in Kuwait: were they Kuwaiti nationals and, if not,
what was their |egal status?

23. Par agraphs 72, 86 and 88 of the report contained information on the

i mpl enentation of article 4 of the Convention but he wi shed to know, nore
general ly, about the powers of arrest of the police force, on the one hand,
and the security forces, on the other, unless they were a single body in
Kuwait. Did a sunmary arrest procedure exist and, if so, in what cases was it
applicable? Wat were the powers of detention of the police and security
forces and what was the maxi mum period of such custody? Ws there an

adm nistrative detention reginme? Wre all fornms of detention subject to
revi ew under a habeas corpus or siml|ar procedure, how soon could a detained
person comunicate with a relative and a | awer, and was there | egal provision
for incomruni cado detention? Lastly, he wi shed to know what exactly were the
functions of the exam ner referred to in paragraph 86 of the report.

24. How many extradition treaties had Kuwait signed and could it extradite
its own nationals? |If a Bosnian commander living in Kuwait was accused by
Croatia of having tortured Croatians during the well-known recent events,
there being no question of a crime against humanity, systematic torture, etc.
and if Kuwait had not signed an extradition treaty with Croatia but had been
provided by the latter with all requisite evidence in support of its
extradition request, would Kuwait have that person brought to justice? In

ot her words, was its jurisdiction universal? Mitual |egal assistance was very
i nportant for the inplementation of the Convention and he wi shed to know how
many such agreenents Kuwait had concluded and with which States. Lastly, he
asked whether it had contributed to the United Nations Voluntary Fund for
Victinms of Torture and, if not, whether it would contenplate doing so to mark
the fiftieth anniversary of the Universal Declaration of Human Ri ghts.



CAT/ C/ SR/ 334
page 6

25. M. EL MASRY (Alternate Country Rapporteur) congratul ated the State
party, the first in his region to have subnmtted a report to the Committee,
and thanked the representative of Kuwait for his highly informative

i ntroduction.

26. Article 10 of the Convention dealt with education regarding the

prohi bition against torture, not only for |aw enforcenent officers but for al
civil or mlitary personnel and nmedi cal personnel who m ght be involved in the
custody, interrogation or treatnment of individuals subjected to any form of
detention. It had been stated in that connection that the Penal Code and the
Code of Crimnal Procedure were on the syllabus of the Faculty of Law, the
Policy Acadeny and the Institute of Judicial Studies, but article 10 was

basi cally concerned with training and education in human rights and in respect
for such rights. The del egati on had announced, noreover, that it was
perfectly willing to follow the Conmttee's suggestions in that regard.

27. Wth regard to article 11 of the Convention, it would be useful to know
whet her Kuwait had a procedure for nmonitoring conpliance with interrogation
rul es and practices and the provisions regarding the treatnment of prisoners,
and whet her such supervision was mandatory. Paragraphs 54 and 55 of the
report concerning the many human rights violations perpetrated in Kuwait
during the transitional period stated that neasures had been taken to prevent
any recurrence of such violations: he wi shed to know what those measures
were. Paragraph 110 stated that the Kuwaiti courts had tried persons who had
been found to be involved in acts of torture. Wre they |aw enforcenent

of ficers, such as prison wardens, what was the nature of the offences
conmitted and how had the investigation been conducted? Had disciplinary
action been taken agai nst the persons concerned and what judgenents had been
handed down by the courts? Wth regard to article 12 of the Convention, he
asked the delegation to specify, with regard to psychiatric hospitals, what
procedure existed for filing a conplaint in cases of torture and what action
was taken on such conmpl ai nts.

28. Wth regard to articles 12 and 13 of the Convention, he woul d appreciate
addi tional information about the conplaints of torture nmentioned in

par agraph 110 of the report. He asked whether the perpetrators had been | aw
enforcenent officers, whether disciplinary neasures had been taken agai nst
them what offences had been invol ved and what judicial decisions had been
taken. He inquired about the procedures applicable to acts of torture
committed in psychiatric hospitals. He also wondered about the neaning of the
phrase “and ensure the triunmph of justice” at the end of the first sentence of
par agraph 110. For the Committee, ensuring the triunmph of justice nmeant

puni shing the torturer, conpensating the victimand providing for his
rehabilitation. Wth regard to article 14, he asked for clarification of the
first sentence of paragraph 124 of the report, which stated that torture
obviously fell within the category of offences constituting unlawful acts; was
that status reflected in a legal instrunent? Wth regard to article 15 of the
Convention, the Committee naturally wel coned the fact that the rul es of
evidence in Kuwait were in conformty with the principle established | ong ago
in the provision of the Islam c Shari'a according to which “anything based on
an invalid premiss [was] itself invalid”. Mre generally, he congratul ated
the Kuwaiti authorities on the various neasures they had taken to restore
normal denocratic conditions in the country.



CAT/ C/ SR. 334
page 7

29. M. SARENSEN, referring to the application of article 10 of the
Convention and speaking as a doctor, stressed the inportance of training
doctors to deal with the problemof torture in a country such as Kuwait, where
many i ndi vi duals had been tortured during the war. The after-effects of
torture were long-lasting and doctors should be able to detect themin their
patients and offer them assistance. Wth regard to article 14 of the
Convention, he was pleased to note that a State-funded rehabilitation centre
for torture victinms had been established in Kuwait after the war and had
treated a | arge nunber of individuals - one or two thousand or even nore.
Kuwai t had not contributed to the United Nations Voluntary Fund for Victins of
Torture and coul d perhaps envi sage doing so on the occasion of United Nations
International Day in Support of Victinms of Torture, to be observed on 26 June,
in accordance with a United Nations General Assenbly resolution. A
contribution would be inmportant not only because the Fund needed money, but

al so because torture victinms would benefit greatly fromthe participation of a
country with experience of the phenonenon of torture.

30. M. CAMARA, warmly wel com ng the subm ssion of Kuwait's report, said
that Islamc countries had nothing to fear from an appearance before the
Committee, since there was no place for torture in the rules of evidence
established by Islamic law. Referring to paragraph 34 of the report, he asked
whet her there was a definition of torture in Kuwaiti |egislation and what
penalties were prescribed for officials found guilty of acts of torture.
Noting from paragraph 105 of the report that no arrested person could be held
in custody for nore than four days without a witten order, he asked what
period of custody could be ordered by a judge. Wth regard to the 1990 and
1996 Organi zation of the Judiciary Acts, he asked for information on the
recrui tnment of judges. WAs there a body responsible for adm nistering judges
careers and, if so, to whomwas it answerable and how were its menbers
appoi nt ed?

31. The CHAI RMAN t hanked the Kuwaiti delegation and invited it to respond to
t he questions at the next neeting.

32. The Kuwaiti del egation withdrew

The public part of the neeting was suspended at 11.40 a.m
and resuned at noon

Concl usi ons _and recommendations concerning the second periodic report of
New Zeal and (conti nued)

33. The CHAIRMAN read out a letter* sent to himby M. Farrell, Permanent
Representative of New Zealand to the United Nations O fice at CGeneva, after
his del egati on had taken note of the Conmittee's conclusions on the second
periodic report of New Zeal and.

“We advised the Committee at the conclusion of its consideration
of New Zeal and's second periodic report under Article 19 of the

* This letter is reproduced in full pursuant to a decision by the
Conmittee.



CAT/ C/ SR/ 334
page 8

Convention agai nst Torture that the New Zeal and CGovernnent would wish to
submt further coments in response to the concluding observations and
recommendati ons of the Committee.

Havi ng consi dered carefully the recomendati ons nmade by the
Committee, the New Zeal and Governnment w shes to express its view that,
with respect to the recommendati ons contai ned in paragraphs 8 and 9 of
the Conmittee's conclusions and recommendations, it has already taken
the action recommended by the Conmittee. These actions, taken by the
Government in response to the Mangaroa Prison inquiry, are fully set out
in New Zeal and's second periodic report and supporting information.

New Zeal and' s statenent introducing the report brought to the attention
of the Committee the further significant actions taken since the
reporting period.

For the Commttee's clarification, the New Zeal and Gover nnent
wi shes to reiterate the follow ng points made in New Zeal and' s st at ement
and by the delegation in response to the Commttee' s questions:

The inquiry by the New Zeal and Police into allegations of assault
by i nmates of Mangaroa Prison has been conpleted. After referring
Police files to the Solicitor-Ceneral it was decided that no
crimnal prosecution would be undertaken. Internal disciplinary
action was taken against a nunber of prison officers by the
Department of Corrections.

The M nisterial investigation of Mangaroa Prison has been
conpleted. The results of the inquiry are contained in a report
annexed to New Zeal and's second periodic report and set out in
par agraphs 16 to 21 of the report.

There have been significant changes to the operations of

Mangaroa Prison, and in prisons generally, as a result of the
Government's inquiry, to ensure that such incidents cannot occur
agai n. Those highlighted by New Zeal and's i ntroductory statenent
and di al ogue with the Cormittee include the follow ng:

- Mangaroa Prison has a new regi onal manager, a new management
structure with nore accountability, a new nanme and
constructive new projects, for exanple cooperation with the
Maori community to provide i nmates and managers with
cul tural advice and support;

- New Penal Institutions Regul ations are about to come into
force, and anendnents have been made to the Pena
Institutions Act 1954, which provide for inproved
operational standards in New Zeal and prisons. The
amendnents include specific [imtations on the use of force
in cases where the restraint of inmates is necessary;

- A Custodi al Assurance Board has been established to ensure
the secure custody and safe, fair and humane treatnent of
persons within the corrections system



CAT/ C/ SR. 334
page 9

- Revi sed gri evance procedures for prison inmates are now in
pl ace. The internal conplaints process has been
strengthened. The role of the Orbudsnman has al so been
strengthened to provide an effective external conplaints
process, in addition to that of the Prison Inspectorate
which reports to the Chief Executive of the Departnent for
Courts and the Custodial Assurance Board;

- St eps have been taken to ensure inmates are aware of, and
are able to access, these procedures;

- Procedures for recruiting prison officers have been revised
to ensure that officers have the appropriate conpetencies,
and new initiatives are being inplemented with respect to
t heir ongoi ng training and devel opnent .

G ven this conprehensive response to the situation at Mangaroa
pri son, the New Zeal and Governnent woul d appreciate the Committee's
further consideration of the above points as part of its deliberations
on New Zeal and's second periodic report. W should also appreciate it
if this letter could be read into the record of the Commttee.”

34. In response to the letter, the Conmittee had deci ded by consensus to
express regret for the mstake to which the Anbassador of New Zeal and had
drawn attention, to reproduce the Anbassador's letter in full in the sumuary
record of the public neeting, and to insert a reference to the synbol of the
summary record in paragraph 1 of the conclusions and recomendati ons on the
second periodic report of New Zealand to be published in the Cormittee's
annual report. The reference to that record and to the records of the other
meeti ngs at which New Zeal and's report had been consi dered ensued fromthe
Committee's decision to view the above-nentioned letter and the regrets
expressed by the Commttee as formng an integral part of the Committee's
consi deration of the second periodic report of New Zeal and.

35. M. EL MASRY suggested that the Chairman should reply to the Anbassador
of New Zeal and, informng himof the Comrittee's decision

36. The CHAIRMAN said that, if there was no objection, he would send a
letter to the Anmbassador of New Zeal and on behal f of the Commttee.

37. It was so deci ded.

The public part of the neeting rose at 12.10 p. m




